
Question # RFP Section #/Heading Table # Requirement # Question Answers

1 Overall Question N/A N/A The number or items received at each program lockbox for the most recent 12 month period available 

Program A 67,332

Program B 128,490

Program C 15,600 (Approx.)

Program D 7,162

2 Overall Question N/A N/A

The dollar value of all of those payments (this should be something that can be pulled based on the 

dollar value of all deposits for each program lockbox in the most recent 12 month period).The 

information would look like:

             Program Name         # of Payments Received in last 12 months        Dollar Value of those Payments 

Program A                                   x                                                                                      $

Program B                                   x                                                                                      $

Program C                                   x                                                                                      $

Program D                                   x                                                                                      $

This should be easily attainable through your lockbox providers and will be meaningful information 

assuming the lockboxes capture 80-90% of the activity.  If they don’t capture 80-90%, let bidders 

know what percent they do capture and that will allow them to extrapolate. 

Program A $286,056,125.50

Program B $19,649,407.16

Program C $4,080,000.00 (Approx.)

Program D $29,639,602.72

3 Overall Question N/A N/A
How many point of sale locations and machines do you think you will require for credit card 

processing?
NYSDOL will require no onsite POS terminals.

4 Overall Question N/A N/A
Based on your research, do you have any sense for the break out between ACH and Credit Card 

payments you expect?

No, NYSDOL has no sense of the break out between ACH 

and Credit Card Payments to be expected.

5
1.5 ACH Debit and Credit Card 

Payment Services - Overview
N/A 1.5

If NYSDOL has a vendor currently processing ACH, Debit and Credit Card Payments, can current 

processing volumes (i.e., number of transactions and dollar amounts) please be provided? 

Last year NYSDOL took in 8,602 online payments 

totaling $12,803,520 via online payments. 

6
1.5 ACH Debit and Credit Card 

Payment Services - Overview
N/A 1.5 Will ACH, Debit and Credit Card Payments be provided for all UI Programs?

The process is for claimant improper payment or 

business contribution debts. The underlying UI program 

type is not a consideration, only the fact of a debt.

7
1.5 ACH Debit and Credit Card 

Payment Services - Overview
N/A 1.5

Will NYSDOL continue to partner with the following vendors for their respective services?

Keybank (Programs B,C, and D)

JP Morgan Chase (Program A)

Western Union (All Programs)

Yes

8
2.4 Technical Requirements; A. 

Functional Requirements

Table 2.4.A Functional 

Requirements
1.9 How many IAT’s does the agency accept today, and from what countries?

IAT’s are rare at this time.  NYSDOL does not have this 

information. 

9
2.4 Technical Requirements; A. 

Functional Requirements 

Table 2.4.A Functional 

Requirements
2.7.A What financial institution will NYSDOL have their settlements deposited? Currently KeyBank and JP Morgan Chase

10
2.4 Technical Requirements; F. 

Alternative Language

Table 2.4.F:  Performance 

Standards, Liquidated 

Damages, Reimbursements

7.1 Is this requirement for Customer/End-User Support or NYSDOL Support? Both

11 Attachment D – Cost Response Form
ACH Debit & Credit Card 

Transaction Fees
N/A Please confirm that NYSDOL will not be absorbing any transaction fees. Correct. All transaction fees are charged to the debtor.

12 2.4 Technical Requirements
2.4.A Functional 

Requirements
2.5.C

Translation Services: Can you please elaborate on what translation services are to be provided by the 

bidder? For example; email, audio, etc.?

At a minimum, availability of a language line service to 

handle customers who may speak other languages.

13 1.4 Strategic Direction & Vision N/A N Can you please expand on what information would be collected on the fillable PDF document?

Information in relation to the Department of Safety and 

Health and the data they collect.

These forms can be found at 

https://labor.ny.gov/formsdocs/wp/shformsandpublicat

ions.shtm



Question # RFP Section #/Heading Table # Requirement # Question Answers

14 1.4 Strategic Direction & Vision N/A N Will the fillable PDF document need be delivered electronically with the payment? Yes, a payment must be tied to all submissions.

15 1.4 Strategic Direction & Vision N/A N Will the fillable PDF document require an e-signature? Yes

16 1.4 Strategic Direction and Vision N/A N
Can we gather the Safety and Heath Permit application information through a web page, in lieu of a 

PDF, and then export the information to DOL?
Yes

17 1 / General Requirements  2.4.A 1.4
Please provide a monthly call forecast and help identify peak processing times? In addition, are you 

able to provide metrics on average call duration?

Program A: April, May

Program B: October, December, January

Program C: April, May, June

Program D: 8.5 calls per month or 100 per year.

There are no metrics available.

18 1 / General Requirements  2.4.A 1.9
Cross-border payments. What other cross-border capabilities is NYSDOL looking for? Are the 

transactions all going to be ACH debits? To which countries will you send transactions?

Programs A and B: There are no other cross-border 

capabilities being sought for UI. All that is being sought 

is that customers have the ability to make payment by 

ACH debit or credit card from anywhere in the world 

(subject to federal restrictions on certain countries).

Program D: other cross-border = none, ACH debits = yes

Programs A-D: Do not send transactions to other 

countries.

19 1 / General Requirements  2.4.A 1.9
Please provide the volume of IAT transactions initiated through the online site and / or IVR / call 

center.

IAT’s are rare at this time.  NYSDOL does not have this 

information. 

20
2.2 / Saved Bank Account and Credit 

Card Information
2.4.A 2.2.B Can NYSDOL please provide further details regarding purpose of this requirement? 

We do not wish to save any account information or card 

information

21
2.4 / Data Delivery and File 

Transmission
2.4.A 2.4.E

Requirements 2.1.A and 2.3.A appear to indicate that authentication will be done via Single Sign-On. 

Will users instead need to create a separate account on the payment system, based on the customer 

numbers sent via file transmission?

We do not foresee a need to create a separate account.

22 2.5 / Customer Service 2.4.A 2.5.E Can NYSDOL please define “multiple key retrievals for customer inquiry”?

We and our customers want to be able to look up 

payment history using a variety of data types: e.g. 

Customer # and tracking number.

23 2.7 / Deposits 2.4.A 2.7.D
Approximately how many ACH debit transactions are reversed annually? Approximately how many 

credit card reversals and chargebacks have occurred annually?

Under current use chargebacks and reversals are 

extremely rare. We are aware of 2 disputes over the 

past 6 years.

24 2.7 / Deposits 2.4.A 2.7.F
Please provide additional information regarding this requirement and purpose. Is NYSDOL referring to 

ACH adjustments? Credit card adjustments? Debit / credit memos?
NYSDOL is referring to all adjustments. 

25 3 / Accounting and Reporting 2.4.A 3.4 What return reason codes is NYSDOL looking for?
NYSDOL will work with the awarded vendor to establish 

reason codes. 

26 3 / Accounting and Reporting 2.4.A 3.4

NYSDOL prefers not to have items represented immediately. For what timeframe is NYSDOL looking 

for when redepositing (i.e. next day, 5 days later, etc.). Further, please provide the number and 

average amount of items being redeposited.

Representment should be 3-5 days later. We would not 

want to represent payments if the reason is other than 

insufficient funds or over credit limit. For instance, there 

would be no representment when payments invalidate 

for the following reasons; Invalid account number, No 

account/unable to locate, Account closed, Not 

authorized, stopped payments.

27 3 / Accounting and Reporting 2.4.A 3.6

Can NYSDOL please define the customer activity that must be tracked and stored for WEB and IVR 

applications? What information is needed by NYSDOL for statistical reporting and problem 

identification? Additionally, for how long will the activity need to be available to NYSDOL?

7 years as per the RFP for time.

We wish to track incoming phone numbers/IP addresses 

and the date and time of access. Mobile vs. Desktop. 

The vendor may offer additional tracking as well. 



Question # RFP Section #/Heading Table # Requirement # Question Answers

28
5 / Worker Protection Monetary 

System
2.4.A 5.1 What interface methods does the Worker Protection Monetary system offer? 

No interface currently exists.  The solution could be to 

use exposed SOAP services or Restful APIs.   Further 

discussion would be needed before finalizing.  

29
5 / Worker Protection Monetary 

System
2.4.A 5.1 Would NYS DOL accept file exports?

Generally yes, as long as data is formatted in accordance 

with the templates provided.

30
5 / Worker Protection Monetary 

System
2.4.A 5.2

Please describe the remote connectivity and authentication capabilities of the WPM system to meet 

this real-time validation requirement.

Our WebSphere environments are capable of many 

modern real-time authentication and validation 

techniques, Akana service being one.  Further discussion 

is necessary to choose the best option. 

31 7 / Test Environment 2.4.B 7.1
End to End Testing – Please provide the anticipated duration, # of files, cycles and volume of testing 

required. 

End to End Testing will occur in the three non-

production environments.  The anticipated duration in 

each environment, number of files and cycles, and 

volume of testing will vary based on the test scenarios.  

The Performance environment testing typically includes 

the highest volume.  It is expected that testing 

accommodations will also be available in Production.  

32 3 / Cost Requirements N/A N/A

For each of the programs can NYSDOL please provide a breakdown of ACH processing volumes 

including the number of ACH transactions, the average dollars processed daily and annual dollar 

amounts?  

In 2019 NYSDOL took in 5017 ACH transactions, 

averaging $607,341.67 per month. NYSDOL does not 

track the daily usage. 

33 3 / Cost Requirements N/A N/A What is the volume of ACH transmissions? In 2019 NYSDOL took in 5017 ACH transactions. 

34 3 / Cost Requirements N/A N/A

For each of the programs can NYSDOL please provide a breakdown, by card type, of card processing 

volumes including the number of credit card transactions, the average transaction dollar amount and 

annual dollars processed? 

In 2019 NYSDOL took in the following:

3585 AMEX transactions totaling $5,515,420. Per month 

average was $459,618.33

5017 ACH transactions totaling $7,288,100

Per month average was $607,431.67

35 3 / Cost Requirements N/A N/A Is there seasonality to the volumes / activity?

Program A: April, May

Program B: For UI debt payments, generally no. There 

may be some increase in claimant debt payment 

between October and January prior to debt referral for 

federal Treasury Offset.

Program C: Spring and summer are busier. 

Program D: No peak

36 3 / Cost Requirements N/A N/A What are the average balances maintained in the bank accounts? Is there volatility with the balances?

This will not be answered by NYSDOL.  It is not 

information needed to bid on this RFP.  The RFP states 

the Proposer will deposit into designated DOL bank 

accounts.  

37 3 / Cost Requirements N/A N/A Does NYSDOL have a prescribed Earnings Credit calculation to which the bidder must agree?

NYSDOL needs to know how long the Proposer will be 

holding NYSDOL funds before this question is answered.  

Our understanding is the Proposer will be a money 

transmitter only and monies collected by credit 

cards/debit cards  will be settled on the next business 

day.

38 3 / Cost Requirements N/A N/A How many bank accounts will be used?
Settlements are currently deposited into 4 bank 

accounts.

39 6 / General Terms and Conditions N/A 6.9
Is the NYSDOL able to provide Bidders a copy of the annual UI confidentiality training, modules 1 and 

2 and the annual non-disclosure agreement?
Yes



Question # RFP Section #/Heading Table # Requirement # Question Answers

40
1.5 ACH Debit and Credit Card 

Payment Services - Overview
N/A N/A

NYSDOL staff accepts checks by phone and payments by Western Union?  Are these ACH and card 

payments?   Will this stay in place?

No, it is not ACH, it is paper checks. Yes, this process will 

remain in place.

41 1.4 Strategic Direction and Vision N/A N

How would the payment be submitted?  Would bank or card information be input on PDF and then 

uploaded to NY website and then to payment processor?  We would like to learn more about this 

future need.

The fillable PDF and ACH/Credit card information should 

be entered on the vendors site and the PDF and 

ACH/Credit card information should be passed to NYS. 

The file specified in the RFP for sending Credit card/Bank 

information to NYS will allow us to know which PDF is 

associated with which payment through a unique 

identifier. 

42 2.4.A Functional Requirements 2.3 9 What countries?  As an example, allow ACH from Canadian customer from Canadian bank?

Any country from any acceptable financial institution 

allowed under U.S. law. Customers in foreign countries 

will be allowed to pay their debt as long as the 

processor can legally accept payment from those 

locales/financial institutions.

43 2.4.A Functional Requirements 1.14 14
Are you asking for a debtor to be able to schedule a future dated one-time payment for 3 years or is 

this related to a recurring payment schedule?

Generally recurring payments according to established 

payment plans. Incumbent on the debtor to know the 

value and set the payments. The processor need not 

know the terms of the payment plans.

44 2.4.A Functional Requirements 5.1 & 5.2 1 & 2
Can you describe the requirements below?  What do you mean by interface?  Would API suffice with 

notification to system advising of certain events by customers?

NYSDOL defines interface as API. Yes, an API will suffice 

with a generic interoperable and secure data 

transmission (SOAP, XML or JSON)  

45
Section B. Development/Support 

Service Requirements
2.4 B 2.1 Please clarify if “annual reports” refers to the SOC 2 report or to the bidder’s financial statements. SOC 2

46
Section B. Development/Support 

Service Requirements
2.4 B 4.1 Please clarify if “annual reports” refers to the SOC 1 report or to the bidder’s financial statements. SOC 1

47
Section B. Development/Support 

Service Requirements
2.4 B 2.1 & 4.1 Does the State require the bidder to provider both a SOC 1 and SOC 2 report annually? Yes

48 Section 3: Cost Requirements 3.3.A 3.1

The requirement references a percentage-based ACH Debit transaction fee will be paid by NYSDOL’s 

payor-debtor. Attachment D has the Unit Cost for ACH Debit column listed with a dollar symbol. Is 

NYSDOL looking for the ACH Debit cost to payor/debtor to percentage-based or a flat dollar figure?  

Item 3.1 has been amended. Transaction fees will be 

paid as flat rates. 

49

Section 3: Cost Requirements/3.3. 

Cost Proposal and Required 

Responses

3.3 A 3.2 & 4.1 Please clarify if there is a difference in these two line items.

Yes, there is a difference. A transaction is a flat 

unchanging fee attached to all transactions. A 

convenience fee is a percentage based fee for credit 

cards.

50 2.4 Technical Requirements 
2.4.A Functional 

Requirements
1.19 on p 22

Can DOL provide insights into what they are trying to accomplish with this requirement? We are just 

speculating but is DOL looking for BIN Blocking?  We believe that is frowned upon by the card 

schemes - if you accept Visa Credit Cards, you are supposed to accept ALL Visa Credit Cards.  If the 

concern is that overseas cards are being used, the merchant setup can be configured to only accept 

US Issued Cards. If it is specific credit card numbers that DOL wishes to block (as you note in the 

requirement) how does DOL have the entire card number and does that raise any PCI compliance 

issues for DOL?  We are very much looking forward to learning more about DOLs objectives so that we 

can provide the best solutions.   

For fraud prevention purposes the Department may 

advise the winning bidder of credit card or debit card 

numbers that we by our investigations know are 

fraudulent. 

51 2.4 Technical Requirements 
2.4.A Functional 

Requirements

2.5.A, B, C, D on p 25-

26
Please confirm DOL is looking for bidders to providing phone based customer service to payers. Confirmed

2.4 Technical Requirements 
2.4.A Functional 

Requirements

2.5.A, B, C, D on p 25-

26

Related, does DOL currently provide customer services support either on its own or through a 3rd 

party provider?  If so, it would be extremely helpful to have the following information in order to 

scope an appropriate solution:

On its own and through a third party service.

52



Question # RFP Section #/Heading Table # Requirement # Question Answers

2.4 Technical Requirements 
2.4.A Functional 

Requirements

2.5.A, B, C, D on p 25-

26

1. Expected call volume - most current 90 days (30min. interval reporting would be ideal for capacity 

planning and scheduling) 

1. We have not had ACH before so we are sure how 

much call volume we can expect upon adoption

2.4 Technical Requirements 
2.4.A Functional 

Requirements

2.5.A, B, C, D on p 25-

26
2. Expected hours of operation

2. Hours of operation for calls should be at least 9 to 5. 

24/7 is preferred. New York State Time. 

2.4 Technical Requirements 
2.4.A Functional 

Requirements

2.5.A, B, C, D on p 25-

26

3. Service Level Requirement – % of calls answered within ‘x’ # of seconds.  (eg. 70% of calls within 30 

seconds)

3. Including call backs calls answered within 10 minutes 

must not be less than 70%.

2.4 Technical Requirements 
2.4.A Functional 

Requirements

2.5.A, B, C, D on p 25-

26
4. Average Handle Time (AHT) of calls serviced 4. 9 minutes

2.4 Technical Requirements 
2.4.A Functional 

Requirements

2.5.A, B, C, D on p 25-

26
5. % of calls in Spanish 5. 9.45%

53 2.4 Technical Requirements 
2.4.A Functional 

Requirements
2.7.A on pg. 27

We note that DOL indicates deposits would need to be made into “current accounts held by NYSDOL”.   

The deposit of proceeds collected by bidder for NYSDOL would need to be made into accounts 

maintained at our bank, therefore new accounts would need to be established. Is this acceptable?

As long as the money can be transferred to our present 

accounts, we have no objection.

54 N/A N/A
Exhibit 2 -Tracking 

Number Format
Please confirm that all 4 programs will share the same tracking number format?

No, each program may have unique tracking number 

formats.

55 2.4 Technical Requirements 
2.4.A Functional 

Requirements
1.9 on Pg. 20

Can NYS DOL provide more details regarding its desire to accept cross-border IATs? The additional 

information will help us better understand the need thereby enabling us to identify a possible 

solution. 

There are no other cross-boarder capabilities being 

sought. 

56 N/A N/A N/A

Describe your expectation of vendor implantation

1. Bi-Directional

2. Blended Payment

3. Batch Processing

1. Bi-Directional – From a request/response perspective 

it is expected implementation. 

2. Blended Payment – If we are referring to split 

payments, we are open to the methodology. 

3. Batch Processing – Any processing needed after the 

initial real-time transaction. Example: transaction 

reconciliation process. 

57 N/A N/A N/A Will you confirm that you will require your current vendor to work with MSB for implementation? 

No. The vendor does not need to work with a money 

services business (MSB). The Department’s work with 

Western Union is separate and apart from this RFP.

58
1.5 ACH Debit and Credit Card 

Payment Services-Overview (page 8)
N/A N/A

Will you continue or replace your Western Union Quick Collect and Western Union Phone 

Pay/Speedpay for the UI collections? 
Continue

59
1.5 ACH Debit and Credit Card 

Payment Services-Overview (page 8)
N/A N/A

Same with Key Bank and JPMorgan Chase Lockbox.  Are you looking to replacing these banks or will 

you continue to keep their payment servies as well? 
Continue.

60
1.5 ACH Debit and Credit Card 

Payment Services-Overview (page 8)
N/A N/A Will you continue to process paper checks or migrate all to ACH Debit Card consumer payments? Continue.

61
1.5 ACH Debit and Credit Card 

Payment Services-Overview (page 8)
N/A N/A

Do you want to add a e-Check for an online payments? This is where the consumer provides their 

routing number through an online portal.

Please refer to Table 2.4.A Item 1.1 regarding payment 

solution requirements and desirables. 

62
1.5 ACH Debit and Credit Card 

Payment Services-Overview (page 8)
N/A N/A

What are your consumer fees for each transaction type? Please provide a breakdown what you charge 

for each payment type.  

Any consumer fees are not charged by NYSDOL and are 

subject to their credit/debit card provider. If a customer 

pays cash via Western Union, they absorb all fees 

according to Western Union's schedule of fees.

63
1.5 ACH Debit and Credit Card 

Payment Services-Overview (page 8)
N/A N/A Do you absorb all your convenience fees? Or do you charge all your convenience fees?  NYSDOL currently absorbs fees. 

64
1.5 ACH Debit and Credit Card 

Payment Services-Overview (page 8)
N/A N/A Do you have any Merchant ID’s (MID’s) to currently accept credit cards? NYSDOL currently has one Merchant ID

52
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65
1.5 ACH Debit and Credit Card 

Payment Services-Overview (page 8)
N/A N/A Do you charge for lockbox fees? What is the fee for each one? Is there no fee? No.

66
1.5 ACH Debit and Credit Card 

Payment Services-Overview (page 8)
N/A N/A

What do you charge for the Western Union Quick Collect? How many transactions do you receive in a 

month?

If a customer pays cash via Western Union, they absorb 

all fees according to Western Union's schedule of fees. 

Average monthly volume is 13 transactions.

67
1.5 ACH Debit and Credit Card 

Payment Services-Overview (page 8)
N/A N/A Do accept cash payments at any windows? Other specific locations?

UI Field Audit and Collection staff accept cash payments 

from businesses. 

All other program units do not

68
1.5 ACH Debit and Credit Card 

Payment Services-Overview (page 8)
N/A N/A

How many checks-by-phone transactions do you do a month? What is the average dollar amount for 

each one? What is the fee for each one? Provide a list of all departments for this.

Programs A and B: 792/month on average. 

Average value = $2,140.

No Fees 

Program C: None

Program D: None

69
1.5 ACH Debit and Credit Card 

Payment Services-Overview (page 8)
N/A N/A

How many checks do you receive in a month? Total monthly revenue? Average dollar amount for 

each payment?

Programs A and B: Do not track this info

Program C: Approx. 900, monthly revenue $240,000, 

Checks range from $50 - $4000

Program D: Varies, 2019 Total is $19,797,211.73

70
1.5 ACH Debit and Credit Card 

Payment Services-Overview (page 8)
N/A N/A

How many money orders do you receive in a month? Total monthly revenue? Average dollar amount 

for each payment?

Programs A and B: Do not track this info

Program C: 400, total monthly revenue $100,000, 

Average dollar amt $50

Program D: Varies, 879 MO's for 2019. Avg. Payment 

was $574,924.00

71
1.5 ACH Debit and Credit Card 

Payment Services-Overview (page 8)
N/A N/A

What other types of payments you accept? What is the monthly/annual revenue? What is the average 

payment amount for each one?

Programs A and B: Do not track this info

Program C: state agency is a Purchase Order (through 

SFS) $240,000, about half are money orders, half are 

checks and less than 1% are neither

Program D: Certified Check, Annual $9,653,089.54, avg. 

Varies

72
1.5 ACH Debit and Credit Card 

Payment Services-Overview (page 8)
N/A N/A Do you require onsite POS Terminals? How many? What departments? NYSDOL requires no onsite POS Terminals.

73
1.5 ACH Debit and Credit Card 

Payment Services-Overview (page 8)

Do you have any Kiosks? Do they take payments? How many do you have if any? What departments 

utilize them if any?
NYSDOL does not have any Kiosks.

74
1.5 ACH Debit and Credit Card 

Payment Services-Overview (page 8)
N/A N/A

For 3 Payment Types:

$278MM in business debt who owe UI benefits back with penalties and interest

$364MM owed by former claimants who were overpaid

$30MM Payments for wages and penalties w/labor law enforcement

Total =$672.1MM

Can you breakdown what payment type you receive for each one? Checks, Cash, M.O? what is the 

average dollar amount for each one? 

Programs A and B: Accepts Checks, Cash, MO's, Certified 

Checks, Western Union, Check by Phone.

Program C: N/A

Program D: Checks and MO's

Programs A, B, and D: Do not track the dollar amount 

per payment type for all payment types. See questions 

75 - 78 for all tracked data.  
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75
1.5 ACH Debit and Credit Card 

Payment Services-Overview (page 8)
N/A N/A

For the: $278MM in business debt who owe UI benefits back with penalties and interest: Can you 

provide a break down number of Western Union Quick Collect payments received each month and 

revenue dollars received?

The same thing for the number of agent over the phone payments transactions received each month 

and what is average dollar amount for each transaction? 

13/month on average. Average value = $1,430

792/month on average. Average value = $2,140. 

76
1.5 ACH Debit and Credit Card 

Payment Services-Overview (page 8)
N/A N/A

Please provide the number of agents who take payments? 100? 200? Etc., Can you break down 

number of agents by bucket/units? Are they all located only at the UI location?

Programs A and B: 48 central office staff, 200 field 

agents/auditors

Only UI takes face to face payments. 

77
1.5 ACH Debit and Credit Card 

Payment Services-Overview (page 8)
N/A N/A

$364.1 MM owed by former claimants who were overpaid: What payment types are in this segment? 

Key Bank Lockbox? JPM Lockbox? Western Union? Money Orders? Please provide breakdown of 

number of payments monthly and monthly revenue.

Claimants Overpayments are only KeyBank.

KeyBank Lockbox. 2019:

January	: 12,223 for $1,513,712.12

February: 10,193 for $1,348,084.63

March: 11,065 for $2,173,258.08

April: 11,840 for $2,442,263.01

May: 10,125 for $1,520,066.62

June: 9,993 for $1,539,872.30

July: 10,446 for $1,533,434.19

August: 10,067 for $1,388,352.54

September: 9,601 for $1,387,910.02

October: 11,933 for $1,725,552.19

November: 9,975 for $1,417,998.80

December 11,029 for $1,658,902.66

TOTAL FOR 2019: 128,490 for $19,649,407.16

78
1.5 ACH Debit and Credit Card 

Payment Services-Overview (page 8)
N/A N/A

$30 MM annually in labor law enforcement debts: What payment types are in this segment? Key Bank 

Lockbox? JPM Lockbox? Western Union? Money Orders? Please provide breakdown of number of 

payments monthly and monthly revenue.

Checks, 2019 Total is $19,797,211.73

Money Orders 879 for 2019. Avg. Payment was 

$574,924.00 

Certified Check, Annual $9,653,089.54, avg. Varies

79 7.2

TABLE 2.4.F: PERFORMANCE 

STANDARDS, LIQUIDATED 

DAMAGES, FEES, AND 

REIMBURSEMENTS

N/A
If 100% of IVR calls are ever missed a $500.00 a liquid violation damage is imposed on the vendor.  

What do you define as a missed call?

A missed call is defined as any call that does have the 

ability to reach the IVR and/or doesn’t receive an 

answer/call back. 
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80 Various Various Various

Page 22, Table 2.4.A, #1.17, Bidder must store all credit card and account data in accordance with NYS 

… Laws.  

Page 24, Table 2.4.A, # 2.4.B – Bidder must be minimally complaint with NYS ITS Security Policy NYS-

S14-007 Encryption Standard….etc.  

 Page 32, Table 2.4.B, #1.1 - Bidder must utilize generally accepted banking industry standards, 

including those outlined in NYS Department of Financial Services (“DFS”) Regulations 

(http://www.dfs.ny.gov/legal/regulations/ adoptions/dfsrf500txt.pdf), best practices and procedures 

to minimize the risk of loss, destruction or theft of physical assets and NYSDOL data.  

Page 70, Access by personnel - Contractor, its officers, agents, subcontractors, and their employees 

and independent Contractors, shall be required to comply with all applicable facility and information 

security policies and procedures of NYSDOL and New York State in performing the scope of work 

under the Agreement.  Such policies and procedures shall be communicated to the Contractor as a 

condition precedent to Contractor’s obligations under this paragraph.

For each of these: bidders cannot typically agree to comply with state laws and policies into the future 

as to track and comply with various state’s laws would be untenable.  In the past, we have performed 

a thorough review of each NYS law and then provided details regarding exactly how we comply with 

or exceed each law.  However, we cannot track the laws into the future. This has historically been an 

acceptable approach.  Is this acceptable to DOL?  Banks are highly regulated and have many laws and 

regulations with which they must monitor and comply.  

The awarded bidder will be required to comply with 

policies and procedures that are in effect at the time the 

contract is executed. Relevant updates, revisions, and 

additions to policies and procedures that are 

implemented after contract execution will be addressed 

through a contract amendment or modification. 

81

F. Performance Standards, 

Liquidated Damages, Fees, and 

Reimbursements

N/A

2. Performance 

Standard Changes on 

p 53

Performance Standards reflect current statutes, rules, regulations, policies and procedures. “NYSDOL 

may unilaterally establish a new Performance Standard that is mandated by New York State legislative 

action or New York State executive action and awarded contractor shall comply with any new 

Performance Standard. In addition, program changes that alter the existing processing requirements 

may require the Performance Standards to be adjusted accordingly as noted.” 

We understand the need for DOL to respond to legislative action, however, without having any 

visibility to future changes, it is impossible for us to know if we can reasonably comply. Can DOL 

soften this language?  We would of course do our very best to be a good partner and comply with 

needed adjustments. 

The second sentence of RFP Section 2.4.F.2 will be 

amended to read as follows: NYSDOL may, upon written 

notice, establish a new Performance Standard that is 

mandated by New York State legislative action or New 

York State executive action and awarded contractor 

shall comply with any new Performance Standard. 

82

F. Performance Standards, 

Liquidated Damages, Fees, and 

Reimbursements

N/A
5. Alternate 

Language on P 54

Item 3.1

The Bidder must implement and maintain adequate logical system security, or logical system security 

according to the agreed upon Requirements, to prevent unauthorized access to customer and State 

data and/or State depository accounts. 

The Bidder must maintain physical security and internal controls for all sites and services required to 

adequately prevent or minimize the risk of loss, destruction or theft of physical assets and 

unauthorized access.

The Bidder must implement and maintain the agreed-upon security and confidentiality measures 

articulated in its technical proposal response and adhere to security and confidentiality requirements, 

and

DOL will not accept alternate language of Standard 3, Security. 

We note that this performance standard clause is problematic and ask that, as with other clauses, 

bidders be allowed to suggest modifications.  As an example, it allows for indirect expenses and 

damages such as loss of revenue. It also allows exposure for damages to those who are not parties to 

the agreement, and such exposure is well out of scope from our standard payment collection gateway 

language. This language also conflicts with DOL’s Appendix General Terms and Conditions D., which 

notes: “Neither party shall be liable for lost profits, lost revenue or lost institutional operating savings, 

even if such party has been advised of the possibility of such damages.”

NYSDOL will not accept alternative language to the 

Performance Standard 3, Security. However, in Table 

2.4.F, Performance Standards, Liquidated Damages, 

Fees, & Reimbursements, the first paragraph in the 

Liquidated Damages, Fees, & Reimbursements column 

for Section 3.1 will be amended to read as follows: 

Reimbursements to NYSDOL and/or its customers for 

any direct damages including, but not limited to, fees 

associated with preventing or remedying identity theft 

and theft of funds occurring as a result of the  failure to 

meet the standard;
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83
Section 4: Administrative 

Requirements
N/A

4.2 Conformance to 

the RFP, page 64-65

Extraneous term(s) submitted on standard, pre-printed forms (including but not limited to: product 

literature, order forms, license agreements, Contracts or other documents) that are attached or 

referenced with submissions shall not be considered part of the proposal or resulting Contract but 

shall be deemed included for informational or promotional purposes only.

We have seen this clause before and although we understand the goal, we do nevertheless find it 

problematic.  An essential component of every banking contract are certain core bank documents 

including but not limited to:

·         Deposit Agreement

·         Signature Cards

·         Treasury Terms & Conditions Agreement 

We look forward to providing a custom, stream-lined Treasury Terms & Conditions Agreement to NYS 

DOL which will contemplate only those services within the scope of this RFP, as well as our standard 

Deposit Agreement and Signature Cards. They would fall last in order of precedence. This has been 

acceptable in other NYS bids.  Is this acceptable to NYS DOL?  

During contract negotiations, NYSDOL will review bank 

documents that are submitted by a Bidder with the 

Proposal. NYSDOL may agree to integrate terms that are 

determined to be both acceptable to the State of New 

York and not materially deviations from the terms and 

conditions of the RFP.

84
Appendix General Terms and 

Conditions:
N/A N/A

“Such liability by contractor for direct damages under this Agreement shall not exceed, in aggregate, 

the greater of the dollar amount of this Agreement, or two (2) times the charges paid to the 

contractor as of the date the claim arose.”

An unintended consequence of the 9 year tenor is that it has a material impact on the liability cap, 

making the cap high and likely having a negative impact on the risk reward analysis all bidders must 

contemplate when determining whether or not to submit a bid. As well, the notion of the “either or” 

clause leads to further oddities as illustrated below.  We use annual charges paid to contractor of 

$100,000 for illustrative purposes – that amount is not reflective of likely charges.

At 100,000, the “dollar amount of this Agreement” is equal to 900,000.00 (annual fees x tenor). 

Therefore, that will be the liability amount until year 5, when the second clause will take over and 

become the greater figure of 1 million at the end of year five and climbing to 1.8 million by the end of 

year 9.  This growing liability feature is problematic for bidders.

A few possible solutions to address this issue:

·         Shorten the tenor of the contract to for example 5 years which is a more customary tenor; 9 

years is unusually long. We recommend a shorter tenor of 5 years.

·         We have seen other liability clauses negotiated to some multiple (2-3x) of the charges of the 

most recent 12 months when a claim arises. That would take the long tenor out of the equation if you 

choose not to change it.

·         Just use the “dollar amount of this Agreement” so the liability cap doesn’t grow over time.

NYSDOL will not change the term of the contract or the 

limitation on liability language.  

85 1.2 Timetable of Key Events n/a 1.2

NYS DOL has overall provided a very reasonable time line which we appreciate.  One concern we have 

is that without a sense for volume information for the 4 Programs, we are unable to proceed with the 

development of our solution nor are we able to begin the normal internal vetting and approval 

process. If volume information is not provided until February 18, that really becomes the start date of 

the majority of a bidders work.  If NYS DOL could provide the volume information as soon as possible 

(which we asked for earlier in a separately submitted question), that would be extremely beneficial to 

all bidders, especially those that are not incumbents and who therefore cannot pull the data from 

their own lockbox records.  Your current lockbox providers should be able to quickly and easily 

provide the data.

Please see the response to questions 1 and 2. 
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86

6.7 Minority and Women Owned 

Business Enterprise Participation 

Requirements

N/A

Business 

Participation 

Opportunities for 

MWBEs on P 72

For purposes of this solicitation, the Department of Labor hereby establishes an overall goal of 0% for 

MWBE participation, 0% for New York State certified minority-owned business enterprises (“MBE”) 

participation and 0% for New York State certified women-owned business enterprises (“WBE”) 

participation (based on the current availability of MBEs and WBEs).  

This conflicts with the Appendix MWBE which indicates a goal of 30% split evenly between MBE and 

WBE. Can DOL confirm the requirement is 0%?

An amended Appendix MWBE will be released with 

these answers. NYSDOL confirms 0% MWBE goals

87
Attachment C- 6 and C-7 State 

Consultant Services

We have never been asked to fill out these particular forms before. We believe they may not be 

applicable to banking services providers.  Can you confirm please?  Notably, there are other sections 

in the RFP that refer to these forms.

As per section 10.1 of the RFP Y-24, Attachment C-6 is 

required with the submission of proposal. Attachment C-

7 is required following award. These forms are for 

consulting services. These services are defined as 

analysis, evaluation, research, training, data processing, 

computer programing, engineering, environmental, 

health, and metal health services, accounting, auditing, 

paralegal, legal or similar services.

88 Section 3: Cost Requirements

The RFP references Attachment D having separate sections based on the Program and a proposal 

must be submitted for each Program.  Attachment D does not have separate sections based on the 

Program.  Should the proposer provide four separate Attachment D’s for each Program? If so, how do 

we designate the Program on the Attachment D?

Attachment D has been amended to be submitted for 

each of the 4 program areas. 

89 Section 7/Administrative Proposal 7.3 2, 3, 4, 5

Please confirm if Attachment 1, 2, 3, 4 is required to be included in the Administrative Proposal AND 

Technical proposal. The Attachment B-Proposal Checklist does not indicate these forms are required 

for the Administrative Proposal.

Attachment 1,2,3, and 4 are part of the Technical 

Proposal and have been removed from Table 7.3 

90 Section 7/Administrative Proposal 7.3 9
This section states Attachment C-6 is to be included in the Administrative volume.  Section 10.1 states 

that it is to be provided upon award. Should this form be provided with our proposal?

Attachment C-6 should be included with proposal and 

Section 10.1 has been updated to reflect.

91
Attachment B Proposal 

Checklist/Part 1
Please clarify if there is a Section 2.4.G Technical Requirement.

This was a typographical error by NYSDOL, 2.4.G in 

Attachment B has been changed to 2.4.F

92
Attachment B Proposal 

Checklist/Part 3

This section states Attachment C-14 is to be included in the Administrative Proposal.  The 7.3 

Administrative Table does not state is required. Should this form be provided with our proposal?

Attachment C-14 should be included with proposal and 

has been added to Table 7.3

93 Attachment D

Note 1 on Attachment D references volumes shown in Attachment 2.  Attachment 2 is for references. 

Can you please provide the volumes by program? Volumes requested are average payment amount, 

annual dollar amount collected and annual number of transactions by Program.

The reference to Attachment 2 has been removed from 

Attachment D. Volumes have been addressed in 

questions 1 and 2.

94
2.3  Qualifying Minimum 

Requirements
2.3

Regarding the format of responses. Please clarify, do you require responses be submitted in a table 

format to match those in the RFP?  Or may responses be formatted differently, provided that all 

requirements and question numbers and responses are clearly labelled?

Please submit all response in a table format to match 

the RFP's tables

95
1.6 RFP Process Overview and 

Important Information 
N/A 1.6

Our company supports many banks and technology partners and would like to submit more than one 

proposal.  Please confirm whether or not NYSDOL will accept more than one proposal from a Bidder.

NYSDOL will only accept one 1 proposal per bidder. A 

company with the same FEIN can not submit multiple 

bids.

96 7.1 Technical Proposal
7.1 Technical Proposal 

Response Requirements
1.6

If an Attachment is deemed Not Applicable (e.g. Attachment 4), how should the bidder respond to 

ensure the response format requirements are being followed? Should the bidder submit a blank 

attachment, a document that says Not Applicable, omit it in its entirety, etc.?

Vendors should submit a blank copy of the attachment, 

with a separate note indicating why it is not applicable

97 7.2 Cost Proposal

Regarding Attachment D

a)    Can the State modify their Service Lines (Transaction Fees) to show eCheck (ACH), Debit Card, and 

Credit Card?

b)    Can all Unit Costs show both dollar ($) and variable (%) options for the Service Lines?

A. NYSDOL has amended Attachment D.

B. All costs should be expressed by the bidder in the 

units requested by NYSDOL in the revised Attachment D.
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98
7.3 Administrative Proposal 

Response
7.3 19 & 20

We are unable to locate the Workers’ Compensation and Disability documents. Are these provided by 

NYSDOL? If to be supplied by the bidder, can you please specify which information is to be provided?

A vendor must supply their own Worker's Comp and 

Disability Insurance Forms.

NYSDOL will accept the following

For WC: Forms C-105.2; U-26.3; SI-12 or GSI-105.2

For Disability: Forms DB-120.1 or DB-155

NYSDOL will also a valid exemption form CE-200

99
8. Proposal Submission 

Requirements

“Proposals along with original signed cover letters…” – Is it acceptable to submit original signed cover 

letters for the hard copies and electronic signatures on the proposals on the USB flash drives? 
Yes

100
8. Proposal Submission 

Requirements

The delivery instructions state the labeled proposals may be delivered in the same package, however 

section 8.1 states they are to be delivered in the same mailer. Can you please clarify what the 

requirement is? If they are to be delivered in one package, how would NYSDOL like the outside of the 

package/envelope addressed  if the Technical, Cost and Administrative Proposals are all enclosed?

All bids must be submitted in 1 mailer, the three 

sections (Technical, Cost, and Administrative) must 

sealed separate from each other. IE in FedEx box there 

would be 3 separate sealed envelops each one 

containing its own section.  

101
Appendix GTC

1.13 Electronic Payments

We are unable to get the website link http://osc.state.ny.us/vendors/epayments.htm, to work. Can 

you please provide an updated link?

Section 1.13 of the GTC has been updated with the 

correct link.

102 1 / Introduction N/A 1.8 Given the complexity of the requirements, will the State consider a second round of questions? No

103 7 / Proposal Content Requirements N/A N/A
The Bidder would like to include a cover letter and executive summary in our response. Please advise 

where they should be located in our submission.

As per section 7.3 include your cover letter with your 

Administrative Proposal, you may include an executive 

summary with the cover letter in your administrative 

proposal.

104 Section 1.8, paragraph 1, page 11 N/A N/A

Per the RFP, “Bidders will have one opportunity for submission of written questions and requests for 

clarification regarding this RFP. All questions and requests for clarification of this RFP must be sent in 

MS Word format using Attachment F, Question Submission Form, submitted via email as indicated in 

Section 1.1, Procurement Lobbying Act and Designated Contacts., and received by no later than the 

Deadline for Submission of Written Questions as specified in Section 1.2, Timetable of Key Events. 

Questions received after the deadline may not be answered.” Given the time period between 

submission of questions and the due date, please change to allow for a second round of questions.

No

106

Section 1.6 RFP Process Overview 

and Important Information (page 9) 

and Section 1.10 Responsibilities of 

an Awarded Contractor (page 11)

N/A N/A
May the single source of responsibility for all contract services be a small, dedicated team that is 

comprised of individuals from both Prime Contractor and Sub-Contractor?

Per Section 1.10

Where Services are supplied by or through the 

Contractor under the contract, it is mandatory for the 

Contractor to assume full integration responsibility for 

delivery, installation, maintenance, performance, and 

support services for such items, as applicable. The 

Contractor shall also be responsible for payment of any 

license fees, rents, or other monies due third parties for 

Services or materials it procures or obtains for 

performance of this Contract.


